Pre-proposal Questions & Answers

In Advance of an Amendment

for

RFP DTFT60-08-R-00010


Q1.  Table L.2.2, page 76, provides the maximum pages and special instructions for proposal sections. Volume I Section 2-Technical Excellence lists Sections A and B. However, page 82, Section L.2.5 Technical Excellence lists Sections (a), (b) and (c). Will Table L.2.2 be modified to include a third section for Prior Experience with a corresponding maximum number of pages to address the items listed in Section L.2.5(c)?

Answer:  Through an amendment (to be issued) prior experience will be added to Table L.2.2 as Section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.

Q2. Section L.3, page 91, states: “The total page count for the technical proposal shall not exceed 60 pages, excluding the resume reporting requirements and the Section J attachments the Offeror is required to submit.” Referring to Table L2.2, pages 76-77, we assume the “resume reporting requirements and the Section J attachments” refers to the required submittals for Sections 1, 4 and 5. For the remaining technical proposal sections, 44 pages are allowed. May we assume 16 pages are allowed for the Prior Experience section inadvertently omitted from Table L2.2 under Volume I Section 2-Technical Excellence?

Answer:  Through an amendment (to be issued) prior experience will be added to Table L.2.2 as Section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.

Q3. Section L.2.5(c), page 82, states that the Offeror shall provide a minimum of one and a maximum of five contracts. Section M-4(b) (3), page 97, states that the Offeror must provide a minimum of one and a maximum of three contracts. Will Section M be changed to reflect the Section L requirement?

Answer: Through an amendment (to be issued) Section M will be revised to reflect a maximum of five contracts
Q4. Section L.2.7, page 83, requests the Offeror submit copies of agency-developed performance reports, if available. May we assume these are excluded from the 1 page limit for each PPI identified in Table L.2.2 (page 77)?

Answer: Yes
Q5. Section L.2.4, page 80, states: “The Contractor shall complete and submit Attachment J-1 (Key Personnel and Support Staff resume Form) contained in Section J, List of Attachments, of this RFP for each key person and support staff personnel who will participate in this contract in accordance with Section M-4(a).” Section L.2.4, page 81, states “Only one resume will be evaluated for each labor category.” At the bottom of page 80 the RFP states “Offerors are to provide one resume for each skill set…” However, Table L2.2, page 76, Section 1-Personnel Qualifications, states “A. Minimum of one Resume Summary per labor category or skill

set….” May we assume you will change “Minimum” to “Maximum?”

Also, in Attachment J-2 the required skill sets are grouped under three bold headings: Key Personnel; Required Assignment of a Staff Member or Alternate in the Proposal; and Assignment from a Staff Resource Pool approved by the FTA COTR. May we assume FTA requires one resume for each of the required skills sets (disciplines) in Attachment J-2 in each of these bolded groupings?

Answer:  Only one resume will be evaluated for the required skill sets listed under attachment J-2 in section J.  
Q6.  Section L.2.5(b) Technical Planning, page 82, requests a QC plan. Table L2.2, page 76, refers to this section as “B. Quality Control Plan.” However, Section M-4(b)(2) Technical Planning, page 97, indicates this section will be evaluated for elements beyond a QC Plan to include “demonstrate and clearly identify scheduling and sequencing of its planned effort”, and “its ability to successfully meet the technical requirements of the contract”. In addition to the QC plan, may we discuss these additional items in our response to Section L.2.5(b), within the allowed 10 pages?

Answer: Yes
Q7.  Section M-4(a), page 95, states: “The Government shall also evaluate and assess the Offeror’s strategy to retain proposed Key Personnel throughout the contract’s lifecycle.” However, Table L2.2, page 76, identifies only 2 subsections under Section 1-Personnel Qualifications, “A. Resume Summaries” and “B. Key Personnel Letters of Commitment” and does not allow pages for discussion of retention strategy. Section L.2.4, pp 78- 82, does not request Key Personnel retention strategy. Will FTA modify Table L2.2 and Section L.3, page 91, to allow 2 more pages so that we may discuss Key Personnel retention strategy?

Answer:  Through an amendment (to be issued) table L2.2.2 volume 1 section 1 will be revised to add section C for Key Personnel Retention Strategy with a 2 page limit single sided.
--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q8. There is Attachment on PMO Contractors, Conflict of Interest Matrix.

Did those agencies receive federal funds to conduct similar research as is announced in DTFT60-08-R-00010?

I do not want to generate any problem of Conflict of Interest.  

Answer: Question not relevant to RFP.
--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q9.  Section L.1 (b) last paragraph on page 73 states that only uniformed couriers dressed in a uniform bearing their organization’s name and possessing official identification may deliver proposals or sealed bids.  Alternately offerors using non-uniformed couriers or other means of delivery should make allowances for delivery procedures in order to assure that offers arrive at FTA’s office of procurement on time. For offerers who intend to hand deliver their submissions, is a staff member wearing a shirt with the offeror’s logo considered a uniform? 
Answer: No.

Is a state driver’s license considered official identification?

Answer: Yes.
Q10.  Section L.2.2, states that the font size for the proposal should be 12 point font.  Is it permissible to use a smaller font in figures and tables as long as the figures are legible?  

Answer: Yes for text.  A smaller legible font is permitted for graphics, matrices, tables, captions, and the organization chart.  Graph, table, figures to be a minimum of Times New Roman 10 point font.
--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q11.  L.2.2. Table  Section 1  pg. 76, Minimum of one resume Summary per labor category or skill set, providing only relevant experience information, not to exceed three (3) pages each.  Please clarify the difference between labor category and skill set as page 76, 80 and 81 of the RFP may conflict with each other if these two terms differ in any way. 

Answer: Terms are synonymous.
Q12.  L.2.4 page 80 Bottom pg. last paragraph – 6th line. Please verify each term refers to Section J-2 list of Required Skill Sets (Disciplines).

Answer: Yes

Q13. Offeror’s are to provide one resume for each skill set …….

Answer: Yes

Q14. L.2.4. page 81. Top pg. last paragraph – 3rd line, Note: Only one resume will be evaluated for each labor category.  

Answer: Yes

Q15.  L.2.4 page 81. Top pg. last paragraph – 3rd line ….. Additional resumes may be presented in separate grouping ……. What section does the additional “separate grouping” of resumes go in the proposal?

Answer:  End of Technical proposal

Q16. L.2.4 page 81. The following must be provided for each resume…..  Item (8) 4th line  …. These projects do not necessarily have to be any of the projects presented in Section F…….

What portion of Section F is this paragraph referring to?

Answer:  Through an amendment (to be issued) RFP Section L.2.7, Volume 1 Section 4 Past Performance will be revised to correct the reference section.  
Q17.  L.2.2 Table - page 76 Section 2. L.2.5 page 82 (c) Please clarify:  The Vol. I Table shows A and B with page restrictions, but is missing C-Prior Experience.  

Answer:  Through an amendment (to be issued) prior experience will be added to Table L.2.2 as Section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.

Q18.  Referencing page 82, Section L.2.5 – “(c) Prior Experience” appears and is detailed in its request, but no page restrictions.
Answer:  5 pages

Q19.  Is this section (c) Prior Experience, eliminated from the L.2.2 Table due to Table L.2.2 Section 4-Past Performance Attachment J-4?  And should we not address it again in L.2.5 (c)? Possible duplication? Or are these two different items?

Answer:  Through an amendment (to be issued) prior experience will be added to Table L.2.2 as Section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.

Q20.  L.2.2 Table page 76 & 77 Page Count.  The page count listed on page 76 & 77 for Vol. I do not reconcile to the 60 page limit indicated on page 91.   Can you please clarify how to reconcile the page count or confirm what the maximum page count will be?
Answer:  Through an amendment (to be issued) the maximum page count will be increased to a not-to-exceed 80 pages with reconciliation to page count references throughout RFP.
Q21.  L.2.2  Page Count. Are fold-outs allowed in the proposal? If so, how many allowed and what is considered the page count for a fold out?

Answer:  Yes.  Fold outs will be considered two pages and are to be single sided.
Q22. G.14  page 45.  If a prime qualifies under any of the small business classifications, does it count towards the 20% goal?

Answer:  Yes

Q23.  L.2.2  page 76 , 1st paragraph, Will you consider relaxing the Times New Roman Font, Size 12 requirement to something smaller for the RFP Template Information or for other charts and graphs that we wish to include?

Answer: A smaller legible font is permitted for graphics, matrices, tables, captions, and the organization chart.  Graph, table, figures are to be a minimum of Times New Roman 10 point font.
Q24.  Attachment J-1 Resume Format.  We note the J-1 resume format is consistent with the SF330 Resume in cell block format.  Will you accept the SF330 Form in lieu of the J-1 Template if the text typed is in Times New Roman 12?

Answer:  No

Q25.  Attachment J-5, “PMO Contractors Conflict of Interest Project Listing Matrix”.  It is understood that the J-5 Conflict of Interest Matrix is to be submitted with the Prime conflict of interest only; sub-consultants not necessary.  

Answer: That is correct.
Q26.  If not so, please stipulate as to where this is indicated in the RFP? 

Answer: N/A based upon above response to Q25.
--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q27. Will you consider allowing a Table of Contents page to be included in Volume II?
Answer: A Table of Contents isn’t required for Volume II but may be provided.  It will count against the maximum page count.
Q28. Page 84 Item L.2.11   a   (1).  Is the reference to “RFP Section B” intended to address the labor escalation chart identified on page 89?  If not, then what does it refer to?
Answer: Yes, both the labor escalation chart in L2.11 b and in addition the labor escalation chart in B-8.  In both tables the maximum escalation is 4% per year.

Q29. Please confirm if ORCA registration satisfies the Section K requirements of the RFP.  Are there any other reps and certs necessary as a part of the RFP requirements, does it fully replace the paper-based reps and certs in Section K of the federal solicitations?   Moreover, we understand that by signing block 17 of Form 33 constitutes the making of applicable reps and certs relative to this RFP.  Please clarify if subcontractors are also required to complete a Form 33 given that Section K applies to subs as well.
Answer: Yes, Online Representations and Certifications Application (ORCA) registration satisfies the Section K requirements of the RFP.  Subcontractors are not required to complete SF 33, as contractual responsible for subcontractors are the responsibility of the Prime contractor.
Q30. Page 85 instructs that a Budget Summary be developed for the prime and each sub, with 5 year increments and a total summary shown for each firm.  Would it also be worthwhile to include a summary sheet for the entire 60,000 hour effort that summarizes all firms?

Answer: The Contractor and joint venture partners must present their own proposal that includes subcontractor cost.  An amendment (to be issued) will remove the subcontractor cost proposal submittal requirement.

--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q31. What start date should offerors assume for the new contract?  

Answer: January 2009
Q32. Attachment J-6, Contract Pricing Summary, under item 3 Direct Labor, do you wish offerors to include the titles of all the positions identified for each team member?
Answer: Reference  Amendment 1 (to be issued), revising Section J Attachment (Form) J-6.
--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q33   There is nothing in the requirements regarding a cover letter. May we submit one? If so, is there a page limit?  

Answer: A cover letter, not-to-exceed one page single sided, may be provided but will count against the maximum page count (to be revised through an amendment to reflect a maximum of 80 pages). 
Q34.  The RFP states only one resume per labor category will be evaluated. Since multiple Task Order Managers would be required for contract performance, will the FTA evaluate multiple resumes for Task Order Managers, or are we limited to only one Task Order Manager resume?

Answer: Only the one proposed resume will be evaluated.

Q35.  While the RFP indicates only one resume per labor category will be evaluated, it also states “additional resumes may be presented in a separate grouping which will not be considered as part of the evaluation.” This statement implies that there may be some advantage in submitting additional resumes. If the additional resumes will not be considered as part of the evaluation, what is the reason for allowing additional resumes to be submitted?  

Answer: No reason to submit additional resumes and no advantage is gained in the evaluation of proposals. 
Q36.  The outline on p. 77 of the RFP mentions “Attachment J-2” in the requirements for Section 4. On p. 83, in Section L.2.7 the RFP states “offerer shall complete and submit Attachment J-4”. Is it a correct assumption that the Attachment J-2 mentioned in the outline is incorrect and that it should read “J-4”?  

Answer: This is correct. An amendment (to be issued) will reference the correct attachment designation.
Q37. Section L.2.5 (c) appears to request a subsection titled “Prior Experience.” However, the outline for Section 2 on page 76 of the RFP allocates the total page count for the section only to two subsections: 15 pages for the Technical Approach and 10 pages for the Quality Control Plan. No pages are allocated for “Prior Experience.” In fact, the “Prior Experience section is not listed in the outline on page 76. If “Prior Experience” is to be included in Section 2, what is the page allocation for that subsection? Should we interpret the “Prior Experience” requirement under Section 2 to be an error, and instead address “Prior Experience” in Section 4 “Past Performance”?  

Answer:  Through an amendment (to be issued) prior experience will be added to Table L.2.2 as Section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.

Q38.  The outline requests an executive summary for the cost proposal. Was this a misprint, or is this required? If an executive summary of the cost proposal is required, what information should be included in it?  

Answer:  An Executive Summary is not required for Volume II Cost Proposal.  An amendment (to be issued) will delete this incorrectly-stated requirement.
Q39.  Can a representative of the firm hand deliver the proposal directly to the Procurement Office, or will a representative of the firm be treated like any other non-uniformed delivery agent, with the requisite delays in delivery of the proposal to the Procurement Office?

Answer: Uniformed courier delivery staff are permitted to deliver to the Procurement Office.  Building security does not permit un-escorted individuals to enter the building.   Delivery by a proposer staff to DOT is not a uniformed delivery.  Proposers hand delivering submissions are to follow the instructions in the RFP in L-1 b.  

Q40.  The National economy is and will continue to experience significant inflationary pressures over the next several years.  FTA has recognized this in recent Project Risk exercises and resulting FFGA negotiations on recent projects.  Additionally, it is recognized in the Transit industry that there is a scarcity of the highly skilled and experienced technical resources of the type needed for effective participation in the PMO Program.  Significant wage escalation should be expected as a result of these combined factors.  The current RFP language indicates that the rates utilized in the Cost Proposal are to be Ceiling Rates with an assumed rate of increase.  How does FTA plan to deal with wage escalation above the 4% planned rate indicated in the RFP?   
Answer:  FTA cannot anticipate the unforeseen, but monitor the industry and re-act where appropriate.

--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q41.  Section L.1 (a), second paragraph, page 73, Are the original, hard copies and CDROMs for Volume I to be packaged completely separate from the original, hard copies and CDROMs for Volume II such that they are in separate outer boxes and respectively marked “Volume I” and “Volume II”?

Answer: No, separate packaging is not required. Offerors may package in one or mixed boxes as an acceptable delivery method however Volume I submissions must be on a separate CDROM from the Volume II deliverables.
Q42.  Section L.1 (a), second paragraph, page 73, Are Volumes I and II to be submitted in Portable Document Format (PDF) on the CDROMs?

Answer: That is an acceptable format.
Q43.  Section L-1 (c), (1), page 74, What is considered the title page? Does the title page count toward the overall 60-page limit?

Answer: SF33 is considered page 1 unless providing a cover page.  Title and cover pages count against the maximum page count (through an amendment to be revised to a maximum of 80 pages).
Q44.  Section L.2.2, first paragraph, page 76, Is it acceptable to provide the organization chart on an 11-inch by 17-inch size page? If so, does it count as one page or two?

Answer: Yes.  Counts as 2 pages and must be single sided.
Q45.  Section L.2.2, first paragraph, page 76, Is the font size of 12 point and font type of Times New Roman required for all text, including graphics, matrices, tables, captions, and the organization chart?

Answer:  A smaller legible font is permitted for graphics, matrices, tables, captions, and the organization chart.  Graph, table, figures are to be a minimum of Times New Roman 10 point font.
Q46.  Section L.2.4 (a), last paragraph, page 80, Are we required to submit resumes using the Attachment J-1 format exactly, or can we modify the form as long as we provide the information requested?

Answer:  Use the J-1 form with no modification.
Q47.  Section L.2.4 (a), first paragraph Note, page 81, For the resumes that will not be evaluated, can we provide a table or matrix format to summarize their experience rather than providing Attachment J-1 for each? If yes, will it count against the 60-page limit?  

Answer:  Use the J-1 form with no modification.  Page count does not consider resumes.
Q48.  Section L.2.4 (a), first paragraph Note, page 81, Will only one Task Order Manager be evaluated?

Answer: Yes.
Q49. Section L.2.4 (a) (8), page 81, Is the Section F referenced supposed to be Section 4?  

Answer:  Through an amendment (to be issued) RFP Section L.2.7, Volume 1 Section 4 Past Performance will be revised to correct the reference section.  
Q50.  Section L.2.5 (c), page 82, This section states that Offeror shall provide a“maximum of five contracts within the last 5 years in the area of project management oversight”; however, Section M-4, (b) Criterion 2, (3), page 97, states a“maximum of three contracts within the last 5 years in the area of project or construction management”…which is correct?

Answer: Up to five.
Q51.  Section L.2.7, first paragraph, page 83, Are we required to submit past performance using the Attachment J-4 format exactly, or can we modify the form as long as we provide the information requested?

Answer: Use the J-4 form.  See amendment (to be issued) to allow the use of the entire page.

Q52.  Section L.2.7, second paragraph, page 83, Each past performance summary is restricted to one page. Is it possible to expand this to two pages in order to adequately respond to the requirements of Section L.2.7 and Section M-4(d)?

Answer: Use the J-4 form.  See amendment (to be issued) to allow the use of the entire page.

Q53.  Section L.2.7, second paragraph, page 83, Are contractor performance reports included in the 60-page limit?
Answer: Yes

Q54.  Section L.2.8, page 83, Does the Conflict of Interest matrix spreadsheet count against the 60-page limit?
Answer: No

Q55.  Section L.2.9, page 83, Section 6 is limited to one page. Do the certification letters count against the 60-page limit?

Answer: Yes

Q56. Section L.2.11, page 84, An Executive Summary limited to two pages is required for this volume, however it is not listed here. What is it supposed to include?  

Answer: Not needed. See Amendment (to be issued).
Q57.  Section L.2.12, b), (1), page 87, Is the CMQ/OE requirement applicable to PMO activities related to field reviews of grantees’ projects or internal quality activities for PMO deliverables?

Answer: Yes, it applies to both PMO field activities and PMO products.

Q58.  Section L.3 a) – i), pages 90-91, Where is this required information supposed to be included in our submittal?

Answer: Present the information in Volume II, Cost Proposal.

Q59.  Section L.3, last paragraph, page 91, Would you please clarify what is/is not included in the 60-page limit for the Technical proposal? (For example, are tabs and covers included in the 60-page limit? Is a cover letter included? Is a table of contents included?)
Answer: Tabs, covers, cover pages, Table of Content do count against the maximum page count.
Q60.  Attachment J-4, 2., Is the Contractor supposed to be the client/owner?

Answer: No, line 2 is the proposer who was the contractor in the past performance referenced contract.
Q61.  Attachment J-4, 4., What is your criteria for determining whether a project is difficult or routine?

Answer: It is the opinion of the proposer, who was the contractor.
Q62.  Attachment J-4, 9., Do you want two client references per project if applicable?   

Answer: A minimum of the two points of contact specified.
Q63.  Attachment J-12, Is it acceptable to use the most current version of Standard Forms LLL and LLLA from the GSA website?

Answer: Reference Amendment (to be issued) revising Section J, Attachment J-12.
--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q64.  Will FTA include AICP (American Institute of Certified Planners) as a qualifications requirement comparable to PE, RA, PMP for Program Manager and Task Order Manager positions?
Answer:  No, FTA will not include AICP.  This qualification will be considered in evaluating the best qualified Key Personnel.

Q65.  Consider requiring 10 or even 12 years experience in a program management oversight program as opposed to a minimum of 15 years. Ten years is equivalent to two FTA PMOC contract cycles. (The minimum of 15 years overall experience in the field is reasonable.)

Answer: This qualification will be considered in evaluating the best qualified Key Personnel.
Q66.  Are exceptions allowed to experience/license/certification requirements? Is an offeror or individual disqualified if the requirements as currently stated are not met or is there a mark-down in the rating of the offeror’s proposal (and, if so, by approximately how much)?  

Answer: This qualification will be considered in evaluating the best qualified Key Personnel. Lower scores will be applied for lesser qualifications.

Q67.  Will total billing rates (combining direct labor, overhead, fee) be accepted in the proposal and in invoices for small subconsultants who do not have (federally) audited financial statements, e.g., sole proprietorships? Must all firms/individuals bill at a “direct rate plus indirect rate plus fee” salary rate?

Answer: As specified in the RFP.
Q68.  Please explain the Ceiling and Base for Application rates for indirect costs and how they will be determined.  

Answer: As specified in the RFP; specifically reference in FAR Part 31 Contract Cost Principles and procedures.
69.  Will there be any task order such as Programmatic Services (as under current contract) or are these types of services covered under CLIN 0001 Parts B (Special Tasks) and C (Ancillary Support)? Please clarify what task orders/work orders will be administered (day-to-day management) by the Regions versus Headquarters.  There will be programatic services. 

 Answer: Programmatic work will be managed by HQ staff.  Task Orders will be managed by regional staff.
Q70.  In Attachment J-2, please clarify whether FTA would like offerors to show alternates for the positions under Required Assignment of a Staff Member.

Answer:  It is not required.
Q71.   It appears specific names are not required in the offeror’s proposal for positions under Assignment from a Staff Resource Pool Approved by FTA COTR. However, the positions would appear instrumental in demonstrating an offeror’s capabilities and qualifications. We assume FTA will welcome specific names for these positions/skillsets in the proposal. However, will we also then be able to offer new names, and under special circumstances, add a new firm/area of expertise to a team after contract award and when a task order assignment presents those special circumstances? 
Answer: Specific individual resumes are required for each skill set.

--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q72.  Concerning the CDs, can the Technical and the Cost Proposal go on the same CD or did the FTA want separate CDs for both the Technical Proposal and the Cost Proposal?

Answer:  Separate CDROMS for the Technical and Cost Proposals.
Q73.  For the Executive Summaries in both the Technical and Cost Proposals, is one page considered single or double sided? 
Answer: Single sided. 

Q74.  Does the FTA’s requirement of Times New Roman 12 point include text on graphics (i.e. covers, tabs, dividers, etc.)? 
Answer: A smaller legible font is permitted for graphics, matrices, tables, captions, and the organization chart.  Graph, table, figures are to be a minimum of Times New Roman 10 point font.
Q75.  In Section 2 – Technical Excellence, where is Prior Experience supposed to go?  Under the Technical Approach and falling under that 15 page limit or the Quality Control Plan and falling under that 10 page limit.

Answer:  Through an amendment (to be issued) prior experience will be added to Table L.2.2 as Section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.

Q76.  The Other Financial/Organization Information, is this a separate volume not to be bound with either the Technical nor the Cost Proposal?  

Answer:  No, it is not a separate volume.  It is to be included at the end of the Cost Proposal, Volume II.
If it is supposed to be bound with either the Technical or the Cost Proposal, where should it be located? 
Answer:  Information shall be included at the end of Volume II, Cost Proposal.

Q77.  Do all subconsultants need to complete the lobbying form?

Answer:  Only the Prime Contractor is required to complete the lobbying form.
Q78.   Could we possibly get the Word files for any of the required forms (ex. resumes, conflict of interest matrix, previous experience, etc.)?
Answer:  Yes. FTA shall provide the following forms in electronic format: J-1, J-4, J-5, and J-6.

--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q79.  J.2 – Required Skill Sets (Disciplines)

· Please provide further explanation of the requirements/job description for the following labor categories:

–       Communications Engineer

–       Data Acquisition Manager

–       Procurement/Supply Engineer

· Buy America Expert

Answer:  Reference Section J, Attachment J-2.

Q80.   B.3 – Level of Effort

In performance of the contract, the  Contractor shall provide a minimum of 60,000 hours and a maximum of no more than 300,000 hours.

· What is the minimum and maximum hours 12,000 and 60,000? or 60,000 and 300,000? 

Answer:  Reference Section L.2.12 Volume II, Section 2, Cost Proposal, Subsection 
Q81.  L2.12(b), page 87.

· Will the contracts all be awarded for the same number of hours? 

Answer: Yes. 

Q82.  Is that number 60,000 hours?  Answer: Yes, over the 5-year period of performance If so how does a company reach the 300,000 hour level? 
Answer:  FTA will evaluate based upon need.

Q83.   L.2.12 – Volume II, Section 2: Cost Proposal

(a)   Cost/Price Information

(1) Fixed Fee and its basis: NOTE: Fee is not authorized for Travel and Per Diem expenses, Other Direct Costs and Sub-consultants.

· Is this applicable to all types of task orders including Cost plus Fixed Fee (CPFF)?  No fee on Sub-consultants would discourage the prime contractor from using Sub-consultants on task orders.
Answer:  Yes.  Fee determinations shall be in accordance with FAR Subpart 15.404-4 Profit.
Q84.  (b)   Staffing Proposal

(1) Offer is to develop a price, including subcontract costs, for 60,000 hours over 5 years

(3) Offer is to provide the average labor rate for each labor category.

(4) Offer is to provide the maximum labor rate for each labor category.

· Is it possible for the rates to be different in subsequent Task Order awards?

Answer: Yes, as long as the rate does not exceed the stated maximum.

Q85.  What is the significance of the average labor rate vs the maximum?  

Answer:  Amendment 1 (to be issued) will delete the reference made to “average labor rates” made on page 88, L.2.12 (b).
Q86.  Is the average labor rate to be used in calculating the price for the 60,000 hours?  Amendment 1 (to be issued) will delete the reference made to “average labor rates” made on page 88, L.2.12(b). 
Answer:  Offerors shall propose a price for the 60,000 hours based upon their stated maximum rates for all skill sets and for each year of the contract.
Q87.  Are the maximum labor and average rates fully burdened rates including fee? 
Answer: No, the rates are not fully burdened. If yes, are these rates applicable to all types of Task Order arrangements including fixed price and cost plus fixed fee. The fee is generally greater for fixed price v. Cost plus fixed fee. Answer:  N/A 

Q88.  Are subcontractors required to provide average and maximum rates?  

Answer:  Subcontractors are required to provide maximum rates. 
Q89.    Are these fully burdened rates including fee?  
Answer:  No.

---------------------------------- End of Question --------------------
Q90.  We have an SBDE application pending with the SBA, how much does that count towards the 20% participation goal?

Answer:  As a certified SDBE the firm would receive the 20% participation credit.

---------------------------------- End of Question --------------------

Q91.  Please provide more details regarding “Performance Based” task orders as referenced in Section B.2, page 2 and Section H.6, pages 48-49.

Answer: FTA will provide more details should PBSA requirements come into play during task order development.

Q92.  Will the response to “percent reduction” for “Discount for Prompt Delivery” (refer to page 1 of the solicitation) be factored into evaluation of proposals for best value?
Answer:  No.

Q93.  On the bottom of page 25, the first bullet under Section C appears to be incomplete. Please provide complete bullet. 
Answer:  Amendment 1 to be issued will address the missing information.  The missing information to be included is:

Each risk element, characterization of how likely the project item is to occur, and the magnitude of the impact on performance, cost or schedule if the project element did occur.  Risk Registers shall be established to inform the FTA of project uncertainties and to evaluate the Grantee’s PMP, including suggestion for PMP improvement.  The Risk Register is intended to identify key risk elements for action, but is generally insufficient to establish an assessment of total project cost or schedule risk.   

Q94.  On Page 27 there is an indication that PMOCs may be asked to evaluate Grantees’s readiness to enter Preliminary Engineering. How early would the FTA assign a PMOC to a project to accommodate this request? 
Answer:  It will vary.

Q95.   Explain the “best value” approach in selecting a PMOC for a Task Order referenced in Section G.4.2.a (page 39). 
Answer:  Reference FAR PART 15, Contracting by Negotiation, Subpart 15.1 

Q96.   Section G.4.2.b, page 39, makes reference to “h(3)”. Please explain this reference. 
Answer:  The order be issued on a sole source basis in the interest of economy and efficiency as a logical follow-on to a TO already issued under this contract, provided that all multiple awardees were given fair opportunity to be considered for the original order; or 

Q97.   May one staff member perform several of the roles conveyed on the cost proposal? 
Answer:  Yes

Q98.   Please list any professional licenses, registrations and/or certifications required for the various key personnel and support staff positions? 
Answer: Reference Section L.2.4, Volume 1 Section 1 Personnel Qualification

Q99. In regard to L.3, what will be the mechanism for our in-house IT systems being approved?
Answer:  Does not apply, question not relevant to section L.3.

--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q100.  Page 2 of Section B.3.b., Level of Effort reads, “The Contractor agrees to devote direct labor effort to the performance of this contract approximately as follows:” Labor classifications are then listed in a chart along with the estimated number of hours by percentage for each of the classifications.  The very next line of the text following the chart reads: “These percentages are based on historical data and will be used as a starting point for negotiations of task orders.”  The two statements quoted above seem to be somewhat contradictory.  Please clarify. 

Answer: FTA does not view above as a contradictory statement.

 

Q101.  Section B.6.b. Overtime (p.5), mentions that all overtime must be approved in advance by the Contracting Officer and details the procedure for such a request but does not define what constitutes overtime.  How does this contract define overtime and especially overtime if not at premium pay?  For example, is overtime considered any number of hours worked over a certain threshold per week, or per day per person?

 

Answer:  Any hours in excess of 40 hours a week is consider overtime.
Q102.  Section B.7 addresses Provisions Applicable to Indirect Costs.  Specifically, sub-section B.7.b. (p, 6) of the text refers to reimbursement of indirect costs:  “…Indirect costs shall be reimbursed at the following provisional and/or ceiling rates:” What appears to be a chart follows the aforementioned quote in the text, yet there are no specific rates mentioned.

Directly following is another mention of rates, this time for reimbursement of indirect costs to the subcontractor.  Again, no specific rates are mentioned.  Are there specific provisional and/or ceiling rates that have been omitted? 

Answer:  Rate is determined based upon a pre-award audit.  

Q103.   In this same section, B.7, the subsections are also labeled a, b, d and d on pages 6 to 7, instead of a, b, c and d.  Has a portion of the text been omitted?

Answer: An Amendment (to be issued) will address the incorrect outline formatting. 

 

Q104.    In the Tasks/Requirements section, C.5.A.1., (p.13) there is a list of bulleted points.  The 7th bullet refers to Project communication procedure and order of contact.  By “order of contact” is the text referring to the requirement for a communications protocol?

Answer: Reference OP2 for detail in section J, attachment J-3.

 

Q105.   Also on page 13, the last paragraph of Section C.5.A.1 reads “The PMOC shall articulate measurable goals consistent with FTA’s strategic plan for program oversight.  Reference the Oversight Procedures in Section J.”  Where in Section J is the FTA’s strategic plan explained? Does the strategic plan refer to one or more of the Oversight Procedures?

 
Answer:  Reference OP2 for detail in section J, attachment J-3.

Q106.  Section L – Instructions, Conditions and Notices to Offerors describes the procedures for submission of proposals.  The last paragraph in Section L-1(a) requests that 1 CD-ROM is to be submitted (p.73), but the first row of the chart on page 76, in Section L2.2 states that 3 CD-ROMS should be submitted.  How many CD-ROMS are required?

Answer:  An Amendment (to be issued) will provide the correct quantity on page 73 which will be 3 CDROM.

 

Q107.   The second paragraph (b) in Section L.2 (p.75) refers to instructions regarding oral presentations that can be found in Section L.2.9.  Section L.2.9 contains no instructions for the oral presentation, but instead refers to socioeconomic status and the SBA.  Section L.2.10 however contains information regarding the oral presentation.  Should L.2.b. reference L.2.10 instead of L.2.9.?   

Answer:  An Amendment (to be issued) will revise the language to reflect the correct reference to L.2.10

 

Q108.    Conflicts of interest are discussed on page 94 in Section M-1, Evaluation of Proposals.  In the third paragraph, (c), the text reads “An award will be made if there is no conflict or if any conflict can be appropriately avoided or mitigated.”  Should the phrase “task order” replace the word “award” in the preceding sentence?

Answer:  The section must be read in its entirety; the sentence is correctly stated.

 

Q109.   Section M.4.b.3 (p.97) refers to prior experience in relation to Criterion 2 – Technical Excellence.  The Prior Experience paragraph mentions that the Offeror must provide a minimum of one contract and a maximum of three contracts it has had within the last 5 years in the area of project or construction management.  The work experience must have been in one of the following areas of interest: civil engineering project; fixed guide-way project; or transit or railroad project.  The contract must have or had a construction value equal to or greater than $20,000,000.  Should the proposal include the prior experience of subcontractors that are part of a prime contractor’s team, or does Prior Experience refer exclusively to the prime contractor’s employees?   

Answer: Prior experience refers to the prime contractor. 

Q110.  Again, on page 97, in Section M.4.c.3, “The management proposal shall be evaluated considering such elements as… 3. The extent to which the staffing represents an appropriate level of labor mix and reflects the technical input and ability for successful and timely contract performance.”  Since the labor mix is specified on pages 2 and 3 in Section B.3 of the RFP, how can this be part of the evaluation procedure?  

 Answer: The labor mix is an approximation as stated on page 2 of Section B.3, Level of Effort.

Q111.  Pages 7 and 8 of the RFP refer to maximum direct labor rates for key personnel and support staff.  As far as the labor rates and escalation factors on the chart, do these rates apply to the average rates of personnel in each position or are the rates specific to each individual?  

 

Answer: Rates are maximum direct labor rates for each skillset for each year of the contract.  

Q112.   Attachment J-2, Required Skill Sets (Disciplines) refers to a Professional Planner (PP) to provide oversight and review of grantees’ projects.  The designation AICP is usually used to refer to a certified professional planner, although a PP certification is used in some states such as NJ, in addition to the AICP.  Should, in fact, the required PP be an AICP?  If not, please clarify the PP designation.      

Answer:   FTA may consider AICP certification in its evaluation of Professional Planner (PP) qualification. 

Q113.   Regarding resumes, please clarify:  if only one resume will be evaluated for each key person and support staff position, does this mean that additional individuals’ resumes beyond the first person’s in any labor category are not to be included?  

Answer:  Additional individual resumes may be included but will not be evaluated.

Q114.   In reference to the last paragraph on page 80 continuing onto page 81, from a firm’s perspective, it is often useful to include multiple candidates with the same skill sets in a proposal, just in case one or another has a conflict of interest.

 Answer:  No comment.

Q115.   In reference to page 78, Section L.2.4.a., “The page count for each resume shall not exceed 3 pages.” Does this refer to resumes or resume summaries (as defined I the RFP)?

Answer:  Resume.

 

Q116.  Regarding the reference to “service contract” as found, for example, on page 78, Section L.2.4 .a under the first bullet, and in other personnel descriptions throughout the RFP:  what exactly is meant by service contract in this context?

Answer: Reference FAR PART 37, Service Contracting; Means a contract that directly engages the time and effort of a contractor whose primary purpose is to perform an identifiable task(s). 

Q117.   In the role of subcontractor, does a firm need to fill out and submit Section A, page 1 of the RFP, or is this form only required of firms in the position of prime contractor?

 
Answer: Only Prime Contractors are required to complete the SF33. 

Q118.   Should form J-6 be expanded to include all the labor classifications provided in the RFP pages 87 and 88, or can categories be collapsed.  If categories can be collapsed, how is this to be done?   

Answer: Reference Amendment (to be issued).  The amendment will revise Attachment (form) J-6.
--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q119.  There is no mention in the RFP regarding presentation of subconsultant information/qualifications. Do you have any specific guidelines as to where you would like to see their information included?

Answer: The relevant sections of the RFP apply to both contractor and subcontractors. 

Q120.  Attachment J-1, Key Personnel & Support Staff Resume Form, is set-up similar to the SF 330 format. Can we use the 330 form or our own format to provide resume information as long as we include the specific requested information?

Answer: No

Q121.  Can font size on tables, charts, and graphics be less than 12 point?

Answer: Yes for text.  A smaller legible font is permitted for graphics, matrices, tables, captions, and the organization chart provided it is legible. 

Q122.  Can we prepare our own form for Attachment J-4, “Past Performance Information,” as long as we provide the same information requested?

Answer: No
Q123.  On page 83, L2.7, it is mentioned that the offeror should submit copies of agency-developed contractor performance reports on past or current contracts as a part of their past performance information. Do these pages count in the total page count?

Answer: Yes

Q124.  Do cover and tabs count towards the total page limit?

Answer: Yes

Q125. For clarification purposes, can you provide a list of forms and attachments that need to be submitted with the proposal? 

Answer: Yes. FTA shall provide the following forms in electronic format: J-1, J-4, J-5, and J-6.

Q126. Are we allowed up to three pages for all resumes or just the five key personnel?
Answer: All

Can you please clarify the requirements In regard to item G.14, Subcontract Reporting? Does it apply to the proposal submittal or the contract (after selection).
Answer: Both, proposal and contract.  Negotiated elements of the proposal constitute the contract.
--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q127.  Can we have foldouts that fold into the 8 ½ x 11 pages?

Answer: Yes.  Fold out will count as 2 pages. Yes, 80 pages including covers, tabs, dividers, excluding resumes and the and section J attachments

Q128.  Can the font size in tables and graphics be less than 12 point?

Answer: Graph, table, figures 10 Times New Roman

Q129.  Can we use the standard SF330 resume format in lieu of the one specified in the RFP (Attachment J)?

Answer: No

Q130.  The RFP specifies three page maximum resumes for Key Personnel.  Does this maximum also apply to the other two categories: 1. Required Assignment of a Staff Member of Alternate in the Proposal, and 2. Assignment from a Staff Resource Pool Approved by the FTA COTR?

Answer: Yes

Q131.   B.2 Contract Management/Type

Can the Prime Contractor enter into a labor hour commercial based contract with a subcontractor supported by other cost and pricing data (e.g., GSA schedule)?

Answer: No

Q132.   Section F.4, Deliveries or Performance, page 35

Will revisions to Attachment J-3 be incorporated into the PMOC contract by appropriate modification?

Answer: Yes

Q133.   Pg. 76, L.2.2, E3 B.

Will the one-page Letters of Commitment for each Key Person count toward the sixty-page limit?

Answer: Yes, 80 pages including covers, tabs, dividers, excluding resumes and the and section J attachments.
Q134.   Pg. 76, L.2.3, E4 A & B

Table L.2.2 limits the two writing categories under Section 2 'Technical Excellence' to 25 pages; 15 pages for part A. 'Technical Approach' and 10 pages for part B. 'Quality Control Plan'.  At Section L.2.5, there are three parts identified as part of Section 2 'Technical Excellence'; parts A. and B. that conform to the Table L.2.2 requirements and an additional part entitled 'Prior Experience'.  'Prior Experience' is also identified as an evaluation element in Section M-4(b)(3). Is it the FTA's intent that the offerors address 'Prior Experience' as part of the 'Technical Excellence' portion of their written proposal; and if they are, is it to be included in the maximum 25 pages allotted to that Section or will additional pages be allocated to Section 2?

Answer: Prior experience needs to be added page 76 L.2.2 as section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.

Q135.  Pg. 82, L.2.5[c]

At Section L.2.5[c] 'Prior Experience", five contracts are referenced; at Section M-4(b)(3) three contracts are referenced.  Please clarify.

Answer: Maximum of five contracts.
Q136.  Pg. 82, L.2.5[c]

At Section L.2.5[c] 'Prior Experience", experience in Project Management Oversight is required; at Section M-4(b)(3) experience in Project or Construction Management will be evaluated.  Project Management Oversight and Project Management are not the same.  Please clarify which requirement is to be addressed.

Answer:  An Amendment (to be issued) will revise section M to state project management oversight experience. 

Q137.  Pg. 77, Table L.2.2, E6

Table L.2.2 at Section 4 'Past Performance', references Attachment J-2; Section L.2.7 'Past Performance' requires attachment J-4.  J-2 is for individual staff members, while J-4 appears to be for the offering firm(s).  Please clarify.

Answer:  An Amendment (to be issued) will correctly state attachment reference. Attachment in L.2.2 section 4 to be revised to J-4. 

--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q138.   Section B.4.a – Please clarify the discrepancy of the $1,500 versus 60,000 hours in B.3.a.

Answer: An Amendment (to be issued) will clarify that the Contractor should expect to  provide a minimum of 60,000 direct labor hours during the 5-year contract period of performance. 

Q139.   Section B.3.a – Please clarify the discrepancy between the percentages versus requirements of L.2.12b staffing hours.

Answer:  There is no discrepancy.

Q140. Section G.14 – Does the 20 percent DBE apply to the contract dollar amount only?

Answer:  It applies to the billable dollars against the contract.

Q141. Section H.8.j – What is “simplified threshold”?

Answer:  It is $100,000 for this contract.
Q142. SectionL.2.4 – Normally a PMO contractor has more than one Task Order Manager for a large contract.  Can we provide resumes that will be evaluated for up to four Task Order Managers?

Answer:  No, only one resume will be evaluated.

Q143. Section L.2.4 – Normally Cost Risk Assessment Manager is not also a safety expert.  Does the FTA intend to limit the Risk Assessment Manager position to only a few in the industry?

Answer:  No, we are not seeking a cost risk assessment manager.  Experts with other risk assessment applications with be considered for the risk assessment manager

Q144. Section L.2.4 – What is FTA’s definition of employee, full time employee, and part time employee?

Answer: The contractor’s employee is reported to the government as employees of the contractor for tax purposes.   Full time is 40 hours per week; part time is less than 40 hours a week.

Q145.  Section L.2.4 – Can personnel be proposed as an employee of more than one firm?

Answer: Yes

Q146.  Section L.2.8 – Can FTA define acceptable measures to mitigate potential or actual Conflict of Interest?

Answer:  FTA will evaluate conflict of interest based on a case by case basis.

Q147.   Section L.2.8 – What date should the proposers assume for determining if will or will not be conflicted?

Answer:  6/26/08.

Q148.  Section L.2.12b – Please define experience level and qualifications for staffing labor classifications not defined earlier.  Many positions seem to be combined positions or unclear and the labor rates may vary widely depending on what the FTA intends here.  Alternatively, we suggest the FTA stay with previous contracts which had four categories OIC, PM, Technical, Clerical and have proposer provide average rates within the not to exceed contract amount.

Answer: Comment noted.  Experience level and qualifications are described in section J, attachment J-2, Required Skill Sets (Disciplines). 

Q149.  Section M3 – How does the FTA evaluate and rate “Socioeconomic” Status?  What percentage of rating is this?

Answer: An Amendment (to be issued) will address.  Firms certified as a small business, regardless of socioeconomic status will receive the maximum points for this evaluation criterion.  Firms not certified as a small business will not receive any points.  Additional points based on socioeconomic status of the prime (i.e service disabled vets, hubzone, sdb, etc) may be awarded and taken into consideration at the task order level. 

--------------------------------------- End of Question ----------------------------------------------

Q150.   Comment: The posting of new materials to the FTA website is a bit confusing. The recent posting of the SF-26 Solicitation and Attachment J-1 are listed as June 27, 2008, the day after the solicitation was released, but appear to be contained in the original solicitation materials. Please clarify if there were changes in these materials. In future postings, please indicate both on the documents and in the website posting, which materials have been changed or updated. 

Answer: The information posted on the 27th reflected the information contained in the solicitation when released.

Q151.   Section L.2.4 Volume I, Section 1 – Personnel Qualifications 
Please confirm the experience requirements for the Risk Manager; three years in transit and five years in other modes and five years in safety or geotechnical risk plus three years with FTA risk products. This requirement would appear to be overly restrictive. 

Answer:  Confirming these qualifications to be “best qualified”.  Lesser qualification will be considered.  

Q152. What are the responsibilities and qualifications needed for the labor classification 'Government and Regulatory Manager?' 

Answer:  Referred to Section J, Attachment J-2.

Q153. Reference is made to Attachment J-2 stating that only one resume will be evaluated for each category. If the contractor submits more than one resume in a category to show depth of resources, how does the contractor denote which resume is to be evaluated? 

Answer:  Yes.  Additional resumes to be submitted at the end of Vol. 1, technical proposal.  

Q154. Section L.2.5 Volume 1, Section 2 (c) Prior Experience requires information on one to five contracts for Project Management Oversight services. This section is not listed in the matrix. Is there a page limitation for this material, and if so, please state the limitation. It appears that this information is intended to be in addition to the Projects presented in Section 4 Past Performance; is this correct?

Answer:  Amendment 1 to follow.   
Answer: Prior experience needs to be added page 76 L.2.2 as section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.

Q155.  Section L.2.11 Volume II, Section 1: Cost Proposal – General 
Section a)(2) requires that the contractor and all sub-contractors complete and submit Section K of the RFP. Section K appears to contain several FAR clauses. Is it the intention that the contractor and all sub-contractors complete and/or respond to each of the clauses listed in Section K? 

Answer:  Yes.
Q156.  Section K also refers to SF-33; does the requirement to complete and sign a SF-33 also apply to sub-contractors?   
Answer: No.

Is there a Microsoft Word version of this form available? 
Answer: Yes.

If not, can the contractor recreate this form to make it easier to fill out and respond to? 
Answer: No.

Where should the contractor or sub-contractor sign this form? 
Answer: The Prime should sign SF 33 in block 17, after completing blocks 15a-c and 16.
Q157.  Section a)(3) refers to Attachment J-6 and asks for “appropriate back-up materials.” What constitutes appropriate back up materials? 
Answer: Those materials necessary to successfully interpret and understand the information provided by the offeror.
If a sub-contractor wishes to keep audit information confidential, can this information be submitted separately? 
Answer:  No.

If so, how should it be submitted, and in what format? 

Answer:  Audit information may not be submitted separately.  The subcontractor may appropriately mark on the document(s), indicating the information is confidential.
Q158.  Section L.2.12 Volume II, Section 2 – Cost Proposal 
Paragraph b) Staffing Proposal requires the maximum labor rate per position, inclusive of the proposed escalation factor. 

What is the salary base year for Year 1 of the contract? 

Answer:  Calendar year, 2009 is year 1 of the contract. 
Q159.  If the salary base year is other than 2008, should the contractor escalate wages in accordance with its internal salary administration practices to arrive at the Year 1 salary rates? 
Answer:  Contractor to propose rate for year 1. 

Q160.   Section L.3 Other Financial/Organizational Information – This information is not listed in the matrix. Please clarify where this information is to be inserted in the proposal. Do these materials follow immediately Section 2A – Cost Proposal, Cost / Price Information? 

Answer:   Information shall be included at the end of Volume II, Cost Proposal.

Q161.   Attachment J-5, Conflict of Interest Matrix 
Is the Conflict of Interest Matrix available in electronic form for ease of 

completion and reproduction? 

Answer: Yes. FTA shall provide the following forms in electronic format: J-1, J-4, J-5, and J-6 in the Amendment (to be issued).
Q162.   For purposes of completing the matrix, is it the intention that the Contractor identify as a Conflict only those specific entities with which it has a contract or is a sub-contractor under an existing contract? 

Answer: Yes

Q163.   Please confirm that it is not necessary for proposed sub-contractors to complete a Conflict Matrix. 

Answer: Yes

Q164.   The matrix includes both MTA and branches of MTA such as MNR, LIRR, NYCT and MTACC. If we worked with one branch, does it preclude work with other branches? 

Answer: Yes

Q165.   Attachment J-6, Contract Pricing Summary 
The form lists five labor classifications. Should contractors list rates and hours for the five classifications listed on the form? 

Answer:  An Amendment (to be issued) will provide instruction on the revised Attachment J-6. 
Q166.   The form has only a single line available for the general category of Civil Engineering. The other lines are for Program Manager, Task Order Manager, Systems Integration Management, and Risk Assessment. Can lines be added for Technical Support and Clerical Support? 
Answer: Yes.

These added lines would allow for the combined totals for other discipline positions. How should the costs associated with the Paragraph b) staffing proposal hours be translated into the five labor classifications listed? 

Answer: As specified in the RFP.
Q167.    For purposes of pricing sub-contractor services, how do we handle 

Small sub-contractors who do not have a general overhead or fee structure? Is it permissible to use their “billing rates” that are inclusive of both overhead and fee in these instances? 

Answer: Yes, however overhead and fee amounts are to be distinguishable. 
Q168.   What significance is the maximum rate stated in the proposal with respect to the ultimate compensation for labor supplied under the contract? 

Answer:  The rate paid is not to exceed maximum.

Will the contractor be compensated for the actual labor cost incurred at the time the services are rendered without regard to the maximum rate shown? 

Answer:  Yes, up to the maximum rate. Overheads are subject to audited adjustment. 

--------------------------------------- End of Question --------------------------------------------

Q169.  Section G.4 Item 2 i, states that the CO may issue a verbal authorization to initiate work if the schedule conditions warrant a "rapid reaction,' with written confirmation following within five (5) days.  Question:  How should Contractor proceed if written notification is not forthcoming within five days (or longer if further direction is provided by CO), and remain in compliance with FTA's policy that prohibits the Contractor from acting without an approved Task Order, and, so that they are not performing at risk? 
Answer:  Contractor is performing at risk if they do not receive  written confirmation after 5 days.

Q170.  Section G.4 Item j, begins with "This clause."  Please specify the clause that is being referenced.

Answer:  This clause refers to G.4, Task Order Ordering Provisions 
Q171.   Is there are amendments to the proposal, might there be instances where both the prime and subs will be required to submit additional info? 
Answer: Yes
Q172.   Is the Times New Roman font size 12 to be used on the resume form as well?
Answer:  Yes

--------------------------------------- End of Question --------------------------------------------
Q173.    The DOT/FTA Solicitation, above,  indicates that the PMOC work will be assigned “subject to satisfactory negotiation of individual Task Orders.”  Does FTA intend to open for bid each Task Order to all Contractors selected from the list of non-OCI Awardees, or does FTA intend to enter into a Task Order negotiation process with a single Contractor?
Thank you for your Response.  
Answer: Refer to Section G, G.4 Task Order Ordering Provision.

--------------------------------------- End of Question --------------------------------------------
Q174.  Certifications.  Will you accept only SBA certs?

Answer:  Yes, also those self-certified in ORCA. 
Q175. Or other state/local certs?

Answer:  No

Q176. Are state WBE certs accepted? 

Answer: No
Q177.  Or just SBE woman-owned?
Answer: No
Q178.  There were NO “Hub-Zone” or “Veteran and Service-Disabled Veteran” interested subs at the December meeting (or on attendees list) – do you have a separate list that may identify interested subs with these certs and others as required? 

Answer: No.
Q179.  Are the Letters of Commitment for just the five (5) key evaluated personnel only or for the other alternates we may name in each of those five (5) key personnel posts?   (i.e. Program Manager, Task Order Manager, Civil Engineer, Systems Integration Manager and Risk Assessment Manager).
Answer: Yes, 80 pages, excluding resumes and the and section J attachments.    
Q180.  Is the Conflict Matrix form for just the prime or prime and subs both?  
Answer:  For the Prime contractor. 
Q181. Is past completed work or work that will be concluded before this contract is awarded, considered a conflict? 
Answer:  Reference section H, H.8, Organizational Conflict of Interest
Q182.  Specifically, what forms in Section J are for primes, and which for both primes and subs?
Answer: The forms that require a submittal from Prime are J-1, J-2, J-4, J-5, J-6, and J-12. The forms that require a submittal from subcontractor are J-1, J-2, and J-6.  All attachments are information for both prime and subcontractors. 

Q183.  Can we electronics of forms?

Answer: Yes. FTA shall provide the following forms in electronic format: J-1, J-4, J-5, and J-6 when releasing the amendment.
Q184.  Just confirming pre proposal conference has remained the same date, time and location – 10 a.m. – 1 pm EST July 21st at Department Headquarters, West Building Atrium.
Answer: Yes
Q185. Is a transmittal letter allowable? 
Answer: Yes 
Q186.  Does it count toward the page limit?  
Answer: Yes
Q187.  Can you confirm what is excluded in the 60-page limit?
Answer: Amendment to modify page limit to 80 pages, excluding resumes and the and section J attachments
Q188.  The RFP states resumes (and we assume letters of commitment) and Section J forms.  Does the 60 page limit exclude table of contents, covers, backs and tabs as well? 
Answer: Page limit to 80 pages, excluding resumes and the and section J attachments
Q189. What is the difference between the project information you are requesting for Section 2 Technical Excellence (C) Prior Experience and Section 4 Past Performance

Answer: Amendment 1 to follow.   Prior experience needs to be added page 76 L.2.2 as section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.
Q190.  We assume that restricting the Program Manager and Task Order Managers to "Prime Contractor Only, No Subcontractors" relates to potential conflict of interest issues.
Answer: No comment on assumption.
Q191. Please confirm that "contract employees" and "Independent Consultants" working only for the Prime Contractor meet your requirements.
Answer: “Contract employees" and "Independent Consultants" do not meet the requirements of (prime contractor(s) only; no subcontractors) position.
Q192. We note that there are skills and disciplines that the PMOC might need which are not included in the Labor Classifications; would the addition of staff and resume's related to these skills and disciplines be encouraged by FTA?
Answer:  No.  Submit per RFP.

--------------------------------------- End of Question -------------------------------------------

Q193.  The table in Section L.2.2 (p.72), which “summarizes written proposal’s organizational requirements,” lists Section 2 Technical Excellence, with subsections 2A Technical Approach and 2B.Quality Control Plan. However, the narrative description of Section 2 Technical Excellence in L.2.5 (page 82) also describes a subsection 2C.Prior Experience. This is also called out in Section M Evaluation Factors for Award, under M.4 (b) Criterion 2 Technical Excellence, item 3 (page 97). It is intended that Section 2C.be included or not?

Answer: Amendment 1 to follow.   Prior experience needs to be added page 76 L.2.2 as section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.

--------------------------------------- End of Question -------------------------------------------

Q194.   Page 46, 4.  Veteran and Service Disabled Veteran goals, please specify if the goal is required for both classifications.   

Answer: Yes.
--------------------------------------- End of Question -------------------------------------------
Q195.  Do sub-consultants need to fill out the conflict of interest matrix in Attachment J-5, or is this to be completed by the prime firm only?

Answer:  No 

Q196.   Can we use a fold out that is 11” x 17” for an exhibit?
Answer: Yes, 11”x17” will be count as two pages.
Q197. With respect to the statement in section L.2.4 of the RFP regarding the “Preferred professional qualifications”, in the event that a person is proposed for a position and does not have the preferred professional registration/certification but is able to demonstrate to the FTA a substantial amount of direct experience and expertise in the role, will that person’s significant experience and expertise be evaluated at the same level as the missing preferred registration/certification?
Answer: No

Q198.   For the Section 2 – Technical Excellence of the proposal, the table in Section L.2.2 of the RFP only lists the Technical Approach and Quality Control Plan subsection requirements, while the description of the Technical Excellence section in Section L.2.5 of the RFP also includes the requirement of a Prior Experience subsection, which appears to be somewhat replicated by the submittal requirements of Section 4 – Past Performance, and does not appear to be fully considered in the page limits of the submission. Could you please clarify if a Prior Experience subsection of Section 2 is to be provided and evaluated in addition to the Past Performance information of Section 4? Furthermore, the description of the maximum number of contracts of 5 listed in L.2.5 c) of the RFP conflicts with the maximum of 3 stated in Section M-4 b) (3) of the RFP –please clarify which is correct if any are applicable.

Answer: Amendment 1 to follow.   Prior experience needs to be added page 76 L.2.2 as section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.
Q199.   In addition to the Project Scheduling Manager role, is it intended by the FTA for proposers to address the assumed need for a Project Cost Controls Manager and a Project Scope/Configuration Control Manager? 
Answer:  Project Cost Controls Manager is the Business Economics Manager.  Project 
Q200.   Scope/Configuration Control Manager is the System Integration Manager. 
As clarification to the note 4 on page 88 of the RFP (section L), is it acceptable to the FTA for the proposers to split the role categories listed in the RFP Attachment J-2 to best suit the sometimes typical separation of skills associated with certain discipline specialists? An example would be to propose a Facilities Electrical Engineer and a Traction Power Engineer in lieu of the Electrical/Traction Power Engineer listed in the Pre-solicitation. Another example would be to propose a Rail Vehicle Engineer and a Bus Vehicle Engineer in lieu of the Rail Vehicle/Bus/Motor Vehicle Engineer listed. If this is acceptable and/or desired, can it be assumed that the separated roles and names can be listed and both resumes (comprising the original combined role) would be evaluated?
Answer: An Amendment (to be issued) will address this question. Note within section L.2.12. (b)(4) on page 88 of the RFP section L will be deleted.
Q201.   Note 3 on page 88 of the RFP (Section L) states that average labor rates are to be used, while the preceding notes and heading for the escalation of rates to be shown as per the table within B.8 states that maximum labor rates are to be used. Could you please provide clarification? For the cost proposal, are all costs derived from rates that have been fully escalated for the 5 years? 
Answer:  An Amendment (to be issued) will revise Note 3 to read maximum labor rates not average labor rates.

--------------------------------------- End of Question -------------------------------------------

Q202.   Please clarify how the staffing proposal reflecting a total of 60,000 hours during the five-year contract term will be used in the selection process.  While we are being asked to price 60,000 hours, the RFP (page 2) states that a minimum of 60,000 hours and a maximum of 300,000 direct labor hours will be provided during the contract term.  As such, how will the proposed pricing for 60,000 hours be applied in the event that more than 60,000 hours are negotiated on the contract?

Answer:  The same maximum rates apply for all hours within the year and skillset applied.

Q203.  What is the relative weight of pricing in the overall evaluation criteria of the proposal?
Answer: The relative weight is listed in section M of RFP, in descending order of importance. 

Q204.   Under Statement of Work, C.5 Tasks/Requirements, B. Special Tasks (Reference OP-3) page 14, are the referenced tasks part of the 60,000 hours for the 5-year period, or will they be considered additional hours to the 60,000?
Answer: All task order hours are included. Note, the limitation is 300,000 over the period of performance.

Q205.  With regard to the maximum 4% annual escalation on hourly rates noted in Section B.8, page 7, are there any provisions contemplated (i.e., tight labor markets) that would allow for an annual escalation of greater than 4%?

Answer: Yes, a field audit will be conducted if warranted to verify unforeseen conditions.
--------------------------------------- End of Question -------------------------------------------

Q206.  Page 78, item L.2.4 (a) indicates “preferred professional qualifications of key personnel are presented below.”  On page 87 for the QA/QC Manager (CMQ/OE) – Certified Manager of Quality/Organizational Excellence is specified.  Does FTA seek this CMQ/OE certification or are there alternate certifications?  If so, please clarify what would be acceptable.   

Answer: The best qualified are identified in attachment J-2; other qualification will be evaluated.

Q207.  On page 82, item L.2.5 (c) discusses prior experience.  Should this be included on page 83, in Item L.2.7? 
Answer: An Amendment (to be issued) will address omission.   Prior experience needs to be added page 76, L.2.2 as section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.

Q208.   If an Offeror has several staff members for a required Staff Position, how should this paragraph be noted in the Pricing by Labor Classification as shown on pages 87-88? 
Answer:  It should be the highest rate of an individual proposed by the contractor for that labor category.  

Q209.  On page 81 in the paragraph that discusses Attachment J-2, it is stated “One individual may provide more than one skill set.”  How many positions can one staff member be assigned to? 
Answer: As many as they are qualified to staff.

Q210.  With regards to your request for financial documentation, our financial information when combined with the financial information of our 12 subconsultants will easily exceed 100 pages of material and documentation and could prove unwieldy in the review process.  We’ve had similar requests for the same types of information from other clients/agencies, and it was deemed prudent to furnish 1 complete set of financials in the “Original” Proposal, but exclude this material from the additional copies of the proposal. A complete set of the financials would certainly be included in the CD ROM.  Would you be amenable to this approach for this proposal?
Answer:  No 

Q211.  On page 95, item M.4 (a) asks for the offeror to explain their strategy to retain proposed Key personnel.  Does the FTA want an employment contract with the employee for the life of the contract?
Answer: Reference section L2.3, volume1, section1, Personnel Qualification, subsection b, Key Personnel Letter of Commitment. 

Q212.  On page 2, paragraph B.2 states all assignments will be awarded based on negotiations.  If the FTA requests proposals from several firms before assigning each task order will the FTA compensate the firms for performing this cost estimate work via a programmatic type task order? (To perform this estimate in the FTA’s format under the existing contract takes approximately 32-40 hours of labor by the project manager)
Answer:  No.

Q213.  On Page 7 the FTA states the escalation factor is limited to a 4% maximum per year.  Does this apply to promotions or people who attain PE status (who typically receive a salary increase for achieving certification)?    

Answer:  Yes.  The maximum rate applies to labor classification not the individual

--------------------------------------- End of Question -------------------------------------------

Q214.   LKG has been part of PMO teams for the past 15 years.  Although we are certified as a DBE/WBE by numerous UCP agencies, state/local governments and DOT grantees we are not certified by the SBA.  We submitted our application for SDB Certification by the SBA in December 2006 and still do not have a determination. 

Will you accept WBE certification from DOT grantees such as our attached Los Angeles Metropolitian Transportation Authority WBE certification for the purposes of WBE classification for the PMO RFP? 

Answer:  No

--------------------------------------- End of Question -------------------------------------------

Q215.  Is one CD-ROM copy required of the proposal (Volumes 1 and 2) (as stated on page 73) or are 3 CD-ROM copies required as stated in the table on pages 76 and 77.

Answer: Answer:  An Amendment (to be issued) will provide the correct quantity on page 73 which will be 3 CDROM.

Q216. Volume 1, Section 5 – is the Organizational and Individual Conflicts of Interest form to be submitted for just the prime or prime and subs? 

Answer: For prime 
Q217. Volume 1, Section 6 – Socioeconomic Status: Is this section only for the prime or should subs be identified as well? 
Answer: Prime
The page limit is one page – what should that include? 
Answer: All necessary information to identify the firm, participation levels and its socioeconomic status.

Does this page limit (1 page) exclude copies of certifications? 
Answer: Yes

(Are copies of certifications excluded from the total page limit of 60 pages?) 
Answer:  Yes. Reps and certs requirements for this solicitation may be fulfilled through ORCA.
Q218. Volume I Section 2 (Technical Excellence) – please clarify outline of this section, is it as indicated on page 76: 

Answer: Prior experience needs to be added page 76, L.2.2 as section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.

Q219. A. Technical Approach – 15 pages 
B. Quality Control Plan – 10 pages 

Or, as indicated on page 82: 

a. Technical Understanding and Approach 
b. Technical Planning (Quality Control Plan) 
c. Prior Experience 

If page 82 is correct, what is the page limit for “c. Prior Experience”? 

Answer: Prior experience needs to be added page 76 L.2.2 as section 2.C.  The page limit for prior experience with be not to exceed 5 pages, single sided.

Q220. Should “Other Financial/Organizational Information” be the third section of Volume 2? Is this section excluded from the total page limit of 60 pages?

Answer: Information shall be included at the end of Volume II, Cost Proposal. Yes, this section is excluded from the modified total page limit of 80 pages. 
--------------------------------------- End of Question -------------------------------------------

Q221.  The conflict table list the acronym for Central Florida Regional Transportation Authority as “FDOT”, I believe the acronym is “LYNX”.

Answer:  An Amendment (to be issued) will revise acronym for Central Florida Regional Transportation Authority to “LYNX”
--------------------------------------- End of Question -------------------------------------------
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